Practice Exercises GeneXus Advanced Course

GeneXus[™] 17

April 2021

© GeneXus. All rights reserved. This document may not be reproduced by any means without the express permission of GeneXus[™]. The information contained herein is for personal use only.

Registered Trademark:

GeneXus is a trademark or registered trademark of GeneXus S.A. All other trademarks mentioned herein are the property of their respective owners.



CONTENTS

PROBLEM	5
NEW PROJECT, NEW KNOWLEDGE BASE	5
TRANSACTIONS	5
"Movie" Transaction	7
"Room" Transaction	7
"Schedule" Transaction	8
"Ticket" Transaction	9
RULES	
Rule Review	
Client Side Validation Behavior [suggested]	
Adding New Rules	
TRIGGERING EVENTS	
Navigation Tree	
Triggering Moments	
CONTROLS IN COMPOUND FK	15
ADDING NEW ATTRIBUTES	15
PARALLEL TRANSACTIONS [SUGGESTED]	
SUBTYPES	
Adding a country to the movie.	
Recursive Subtypes	

GeneXus™

FORMULAS	
DYNAMIC TRANSACTIONS	
EVENTS IN TRANSACTIONS	
PROCEDURES AND LISTS	
Subroutines	
Unique Clause	
Data Selector	
PAGING CLAUSES	
Paging clauses in procedures	
BUSINESS COMPONENT	
Updating Employees in Charge	
Working with Movies and their Actors	
UPDATING THE DATABASE WITH A PROCEDURE	29
WEB PANELS	
Working with the Pattern	
Creating interactive screens	
Multiple grids	
Grid without base table	
Loading Collections	
Saving context information	
Special screen for ticket sales	
MULTI-CHANNEL SCREENS: PANELS	
Testing the application on smart devices	

GeneXus™

PROGRESSIVE WEB APPLICATIONS [SUGGESTED]	. 39
WEB SERVICES [SUGGESTED]	. 44

PROBLEM

A company that manages a Cinema hires you to develop a system to store, handle, and display the information it works with. Suppose that the system is made up of these modules:

- **Back end**: part of the application that will run on a web server, so that the company's employees can handle the information from any location with an Internet connection.
- Front end: part of the application that will run on a web server, in such a way that customers can see the information in an aesthetically pleasing way.

NEW PROJECT, NEW KNOWLEDGE BASE

Open GeneXus and create a knowledge base called *MyCinema* to start developing the application.

Tips:

- Select C# as a development environment. Make sure everything you need is installed (including SQL Server). If you're using GeneXus Trial, the generation environment with C# and SQL Server is already predefined, prototyping in the Amazon cloud.
- Do not create the knowledge base in "My Documents" folder or any other folder below "Documents and Settings" because these folders have special permissions granted by Windows.

	Name:	
~	MyCinema	
	Directory:	
\mathbf{X}	C:/Models	
JYI	Prototyping Environment:	10000
	C# C# Environment ~	
	Language:	
	English	Advanced >>

NOTE: This practice document contains two types of exercises:

- 1. Exercises to be done in the GeneXus IDE
- 2. Exercises that can be excluded from the application; however, there is a space in the practice document for the student to enter the answers. (These exercises can also be replicated in the IDE.)

TRANSACTIONS

Import the file MyCinemaTransactions.xpz located in the Practice folder, from the menu options Knowledge Manager \rightarrow Import.

Look at the imported transactions below the *Trn Folder* and navigate through their structure:

- Actor
- Category
- Country
- Customer
- FilmDirector
- Movie

In the Category, Country and Film Director transactions, check that the *Data Provider* property is set to *True* and that there is a Data Provider below the transaction that will load the recorded data automatically.

The same has to be done for the following transactions: Actor and Customer.

Note: More data can be added at runtime or in the indicated data provider if desired.

For the Actor transaction, how would you add the Actor's photo automatically? You can use the images attached in the practice folder.

Customer:

- 1, Anne Parker, anneparker@gmail.com, false
- 2, Lee Wu, leewu@hotmail.com, true
- 3, Ben Smith, smithb@gmail.com, false
- 4, Marie Bell, bellmarie@gmail.com, true

Actor

- 1, Tom Hanks, M, United States
- 2, Leonardo DiCaprio, M, United States
- 3, Denny Brechner, M, Uruguay
- 4, Daisy Ridley, F, United Kingdom
- 5, Emma Watson, F, United Kingdom
- 6, Robert Downey Jr, M, United States
- 7, Chris Hemsworth, M, Australia

GeneXus

Remember that:

- We can use the Find formula to navigate a table and find information according to a condition.
- In the KB Explorer, from the menu options Customization → Images, we can upload images that will be available in the context of the KB, so we could save them in the database with the link() function.
- By typing the name of an enumerated domain and the period key (.) we can access the list of enumerated values.

We are requested that it shouldn't be possible to save two Clients or two Actors with the same name. What control should we add to implement this? Make this change in GeneXus.

"MOVIE" TRANSACTION

Open the Movie transaction and note that we have the following data for it: Identifier, Name, Year, Poster and a brief description.

In addition, the following information should be recorded: Movie's Country, Category, and Director.

A Movie can have 1 or more actors associated with it; the following information about the Actor should be displayed: Identifier and Name.

It is also necessary to know whether the actor being registered for the movie is the lead actor. To this end, add a new attribute called MovieActorStarring of Boolean type.

To make the application user-friendly, apply the WorkWithForWeb pattern to all transactions created so far.

Run the application and add several movies to test the transaction's functionality.

"ROOM" TRANSACTION

The cinema has several viewing rooms, which in turn are of different types (Normal, VIP, 3D, etc.). Each viewing room has a fixed number of seats that we must also save.

It is recommended that Type be an enumerated value.

How to create an enumerated domain? Make this change in the IDE.



Values Editor			×
Name Normal	Description Normal	Value Normal	Add
in3D	3D	3D	Edit
			Move Up Move Down
			ОК
<		>	Cancel

Run the application and add 3 regular rooms, 1 VIP and 1 3D.

About enumerated domains:

Names starting with numbers are not allowed in the "Name" column. In case of 3D rooms, the name of the room must **begin with a letter**. The Description and Value columns can have the 3D value.

"SCHEDULE" TRANSACTION

The schedule is made up of the viewing Room, the date and time in which the movies will be shown (only at these times: 11:00 AM, 2:00 PM, 5:00 PM and 8:00 PM).

Tip:

Use a MovieTime domain of Character type that allows selecting the time:

Name	Description	Value	Add
EarlyMorning	11 AM	11AM	
Afternoon	2 PM	2PM	Remove
Evening	5 PM	5PM	
Night	8 PM	8PM	
			Move Up
			Move Down
			ок
¢		>	Cancel

To make sure that no viewing Room, date and time are repeated, the viewing Room identifier, date and time should be set as compound keys. The movie can be repeated because the same movie can be shown in different rooms, dates, and times, so we don't include it in the control.

Name	Type	Description	Formula	Nullable
Schedule	Schedule	Schedule	international and a second	11
P RoomId	Id	Room Id		No
📍 ScheduleMovieDate	Date	Schedule Movie Date		No
👇 📍 ScheduleMovieTime	MovieTime	Schedule Movie Time		No
MovieId	Id	Movie Id		No
🖌 MovieName	Name	Movie Name		
- 🖌 MoviePoster	Image	Movie Poster		
RoomSeats	Numeric(4.0)	Room Seats		

Run the application and make some insertions to the schedule.



Do the same for the ActorGenre and ScheduleMovieTime attributes.

"TICKET" TRANSACTION

For the ticket, we will place its identifier, the date of purchase, whether the purchase is assigned to a customer or not, the corresponding movie with its schedule, the date of the movie and its viewing room, as well as the number of seats sold, the cost of the ticket and the total price (calculate it according to the number and cost of the tickets).



Name	Type	Description	Formula	Nullabl
Ticket	Ticket	Ticket		
P TicketId	Id	Ticket Id		No
- 🖓 TicketDate	Date	Ticket Date		No
- 者 CustomerId	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Id		Yes
🖌 CustomerName	Name	Customer Name		
- 者 ScheduleMovieTime	MovieTime	Schedule Movie Time		No
- 者 ScheduleMovieDate	Date	Schedule Movie Date		No
🛃 RoomId	Id	Room Id		No
🚽 🖌 RoomType	Type	Room Type		
🚽 🖌 MovieId	Id	Movie Id		
MovieName	Name	Movie Name		
TicketSeatsQuantity	Numeric(4.0)	Ticket Seats Quantity		No
 TicketPrice 	Price	Ticket Price		No
TicketTotalPrice	Price	Ticket Total Price	TicketSeatsQuantity * TicketF	Price

Run the application and add a couple of ticket sales.

RULES

Look at the rules of the Category and Country transactions.

If you try to leave a Category or Country without a name, an error rule will be triggered preventing the field from being left empty.

RULE REVIEW

The following rules have to be stated in these transactions:

Customer

- It should not be possible to save if the name is empty.
- A warning message should be sent if the Email is empty.

Ticket

- By default, the current date should be suggested.
- The Ticket's sale date must be equal to or greater than the current date. It must not be possible to save past dates.
- The date of the movie must not be earlier than the date of purchase. This only applies in case of insertion.

CLIENT SIDE VALIDATION BEHAVIOR [SUGGESTED]

In all transactions, I should not be allowed to continue to the next field when an error rule is triggered.

I'm also interested in having all rule messages displayed at the bottom of the field.

Applic	ation Nan	ne	to GeneXus
Recenta	Customer — Cu	stomers — Ticket — Film Director — Film Directors	— Actors — Actor
	Actor		
	10	o	
	Name	The name is empty	
	Gente	Male 👻	
	Photo	✓ Change	
	Country Id	0	
	Country Name		

ADDING NEW RULES

When tickets are sold for a movie, if the sale is associated with a customer, the points generated for that purchase must be added to the customer's account; each ticket purchase generates points (10% of the total). Write below what you need to program:

Customers Transaction: Add a new CustomerPoints attribute to save the points generated per purchase.

Structure 🧏 Web Layout Rules Events Variables Help Documentation Patterns				
Name	Туре	Description	Formula	Nullable
🖃 🥅 Customer	Customer	Customer		
📍 CustomerId	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Id		No
- 🆓 CustomerName	Name	Customer Name		No
 CustomerEmail 	Email, GeneXus	Customer Email		No
 CustomerVIP 	Boolean	Customer VIP		No
 CustomerPoints 	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Points		No

Ticket Transaction: Add to the transaction definition the attribute that stores the customers' points generated per purchase.

	TicketPrice	Price	Ticket Price	
2	ΤicketΤotalPrice	Price	Ticket Total Price	TicketSeatsQuantity * TicketPrice
2	TicketPoints	Numeric(4.0)	Ticket Points	

Rules of the Ticket transaction: How should the Add rule be programmed?

add(_____);

Make the change in GeneXus to test this behavior.

Another requirement is to be able to record the rewards that customers can redeem. These rewards belong exclusively to the client and must have an identifier, a brief description and their cost in points.

Every time a new reward is registered, it is necessary to evaluate whether the customer has enough points to allow redeeming the reward, and otherwise send a message.

NOTE: It is recommended that a serial rule be implemented and that the CustomerRewardsId field be disabled.

ne	Туре	Description	Formula	Nullable
Customer	Customer	Customer		
P CustomerId	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Id		No
CustomerName	Name	Customer Name		No
CustomerEmail	Email, GeneXus	Customer Email		No
CustomerVIP	Boolean	Customer VIP		No
CustomerPoints	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Points		No
CustomerLastLine	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Last Line		No
E Rewards	Rewards	Rewards		
P CustomerRewardsId	Id	Customer Rewards Id		No
CustomerRewardsDescription	Character(50)	Customer Rewards Descript.		No
CustomerRewardsPoints	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Rewards Points		No

TRIGGERING EVENTS

NAVIGATION TREE

Considering the following structure for the Customer transaction:



Below is a list of the rules programmed in this transaction.

Note: it is not necessary to replicate these rules in the Rules section.

Place the correct order of execution in the parentheses:

```
( )error('The name is empty') if CustomerName.IsEmpty();
( )msg('The email is empty') if CustomerEmail.IsEmpty();
( )pPrintCustomerList() on afterComplete;
( )Subtract(CustomerRewardsPoints, CustomerPoints);
( )error("Not enough points") if CustomerPoints < 0;
( )pPrintRewards(CustomerId, CustomerRewardsId) on AfterInsert;
( )serial(CustomerRewardsId, CustomerLastLine, 1);
( )noaccept(CustomerRewardsId);
```

```
( )pCheckpoints(CustomerId) if update on AfterInsert;
```

TRIGGERING MOMENTS

When saving a new Schedule, it is required that a summary of the new record be printed:



We are also asked to check that when adding a movie at least two actors are registered; otherwise, the application should not allow us to save the movie.

Recents	Movies — Movie	B	
	Movie - Select at least to	e acture	
	Id	5	
	Name	HistoriyMaz	
	Year	2000	
	Poster		
	Description	The film centers on a man who experiences what his life might have been if he had made a different decision	

Suppose that the cinema wants to delete a Customer; however, remember that we have customers associated with one or more ticket purchases. In order to solve this situation, the following is proposed:

Customer Rules:

pDeleteTicket(CustomerId) if delete on AfterValidate;

DeleteTicket Procedure Rules:

parm(CustomerId);

DeleteTicket Procedure Source:

For each Ticket delete endfor

Is the rule in the Customer transaction correctly defined or what changes need to be implemented to make it work correctly?



CONTROLS IN COMPOUND FK

Sometimes it is possible to sell "open" movie tickets that allow the customer to choose when to see the movie. That is, a ticket can be sold for a certain viewing room today, but the customer can go to the cinema at a time of his/her choosing.

What change should be made in the ticket transaction to disregard the referential integrity check in the Schedule table between RoomId, ScheduleMovieDate and ScheduleMovieTime?

Explain it below:

ADDING NEW ATTRIBUTES

Another requirement is to add an employee catalog. Add the following transaction to the KB.



Run the application and add a couple of records for the employee.

The following change is requested: each room is required to have one employee in charge and each employee can be in charge of one or more rooms. How would you model this in GeneXus taking into account the Employee and Room transactions?

Write the answer: _____

Replicate in GeneXus what you have just analyzed.

The impact analysis indicates the following. What would happen in the Employee table if we select Reorganize?



If we don't want this to happen, what can we do to correct it?

PARALLEL TRANSACTIONS [SUGGESTED]

Film companies share certain preview information with all Cinemas. The following is shared: The name of the movie, year, poster, director, country and category; information about the description and actors is kept confidential until some time later, so it is not entered into the system before it is included in the Schedule.

To record the initial data of the movie and not see the other fields, a parallel transaction is required where only the information that is available is recorded.

SUBTYPES

The following application enhancements are required:

ADDING A COUNTRY TO THE MOVIE

Information about the country of the movie is to be added. Make this change.

Remember that a Movie can have 1 or more actors associated with it. In addition, add information about the actor's country.

We are faced with the following problem: We can't repeat two attribute names in the same transaction. What should we change in our transaction structure to save the Country of the Movie and also make reference to the Actor's Country? Make this change in the IDE.



RECURSIVE SUBTYPES

A transaction is requested where we can view information about the cinema's Employees and their manager. How should it be modeled if we take into account that the manager is also an employee?

The Employee transaction should give an error if we try to assign as manager an employee who doesn't hold this position. In addition, it shouldn't be possible to save the information if the manager and the employee are the same person.

How should these rules be programmed? Also write the rules in GeneXus to test this behavior.

error("The employee and the Manager can't be the same")
 if _____ = ____;
error("The employee is not a Manager")
 if _____and _____;

	≪ < > ≫ SELECT
ld	(4)
Name	Jonit Smith
ls Manager.	8
Employee Id	E V The employee is not a Manager
Employee Name	Bittle Robin
ls Manager	

FORMULAS

Previously, the price of the tickets was defined at the time of purchase; however, now the price will be defined according to the viewing room selected. For this, a price history must be saved for the viewing room and the date on which the price was saved (NOTE: it must not be possible to repeat the date). The value that will be used to calculate the ticket will be that of the latest date.

According to the above, which would be the correct option to model the requirement?



Which aggregation formula would you use to return the price value according to the latest date?

RoomUpdatedPrice = _____

Once the Room transaction has been updated, what changes should you make to Ticket? Is Ticket Price still valid?

Do what is necessary in GeneXus and try it at runtime.

Within the Movie transaction, a field is to be added that allows knowing whether the movie is Premium.

For Premium movies, a 7% surcharge must be added at the time of purchase. If the movie doesn't have this field specified, then the normal price must be applied.

Room Updated Price	135.00
Room Updated Price	135.00
Total Price	144.45
Room Updated Price	135.00
Seats Quantity	1
Movie Name	Avengers End Game
Movie Id	1
Room Type	VIP

For each Schedule record, the tickets sold and seats available should be known.

Room 18	Movie Date	Movie Time	Movie Isl	Movie Name	Novie Poster	Room Seats	Seats Available	Seets Sell	
20	042620	TT AM	1	Avergen Unt Game	Here.	25	25	0.0418	OFTE
10	0024/00	3 FM	,	Averagence Errot Stame	the star	25	28	@ unstate	
ž	913579	5 PW		Harry Pollar and the Priszner of Advalues	5	21	28	C SPIRIT	-
2	002520	11 AM	Ť	(Auffrankliner)	1	80		0 provis	041419
31	09/25/29	2400	₹	(Analical Measure	1.0	80	- 10	0 ump41t	051575
c	003820	таы	2	Calch nes Fiyna caph	4 3	26	26	a penata	antiche .
	093520	IT AM	3	Fared Gara	-	25	21	3 Partieuts	OFLETE
2	00.11/00	E PM	ŝ	Calif. en A yes	4.3	80	30	8 or parts	mm
3	0430/20	a PM	6	The America Maxi	171	80	29	2-0=0412	pearle.

In case all the tickets for that room have already been sold, the system should not allow saving the purchase.



DYNAMIC TRANSACTIONS

Another requirement of the Cinema system is to have a catalog of the products sold at the candy stand. The product identifier, its name, an image and its price will be saved.

In order to know all the products offered by the Cinema, a report listing all the movies and candy products is required. The following are required: their identifier, name, photo and type (whether it is a movie or candy item).

Тір

Use a dynamic transaction to retrieve the information from both catalogs and be able to list this information in the previously requested report.

	CINEM	All Products	
в	Туре	Product Name	Photo
1	Candy	Рарсант	
¢.	Movie	Avergen End Game	- Ba
2	Candy	Şoda	Ŵ
2	Movie	Catch me if you can	13
3	Candy	Gummies	1
3	Movie	Forrest Gump	-
4	Candy	Hot Dog	1

EVENTS IN TRANSACTIONS

The cinema system requires that when a new employee is saved, a popup should appear on the screen with his or her details:





PROCEDURES AND LISTS

We are asked for a report in the following format. Place the categories and their related movies, as well as the actors who appear in those movies. If there are no movies associated with the category, a message should be displayed to inform that there is no data:

Forreet Gump	Party I	1554 United Dates Robert Zerreckie		
	Tom Hanka		9	
Unofficial Missio		2017 Uruguny Denty Brechner		
	Denny Brechner		Cor -	
	Tato Olmos			
	Talma Friedler			

We are asked for a list with the same format as the previous one with the restriction that only the categories with associated movies be listed. How would you achieve the above? Write the code below with the changes to be made.

Do a Save As of the first procedure and make the appropriate modifications to be able to receive a Category as a parameter from a web panel. The procedure must show the information of the selected category and, if no category is selected, all the information of the Categories with their corresponding Movies and Actors must be shown.

SUBROUTINES

In the Movie transaction, add a new attribute called MovieRating where we will store the age rating for each movie (G, PG, PG-13, R). For this, create an enumerated domain called Rating that will contain the following data:

Name	Description	Value	Add
G	ó.	0	
PG15	PQ13	PG-13	Harristee
PG	PG	PG	Eat
14	.81	H.,	
			194-0141
			More Down
			OK
			Canor

About enumerated domains:

Names containing hyphens or other special characters are not allowed in the "Name" and "Description" columns. To enter the PG-13 rating classification, do so without the hyphen.

Next, create the following web panel where we will select a movie and click a button to update its rating according to the selected value.

🖽 Main	Table E	Movield	
Aovie Id	&Movield	~	
	1		

Note that certain code will need to be repeated for each button, so we can resort to subroutines to use the same code but update as selected.

1	Event 'G'			
2	&Ra	ting	=	Rating.G
3	do	"Upda	ate	eRating"
4	Endevent			

Тір

Use a responsive table to place the buttons, and change the class of the buttons to one that matches the appearance of the program, for example: BTN Cancel.

UNIQUE CLAUSE

Another requirement of the Cinema is to view a report of the movies that appear on the schedule, without repetitions and with the number of times they have appeared on the schedule.



A new requirement is to be able to view the above information in a web panel. Place a button where you can query the above list as a popup.

Movies Schedule	
Movie Name	qty
Avengers End Game	4
Catch me if you can	3
Forrest Gump	1
Hotel Transylvania	2
The family Man	2
Harry Potter and the Prisoner of Azkaban	3
Unofficial Mission	3
Inception	2
VIEW REPORT	

Тір

Change the Grid classes to WorkWith and the Button class to Btn Cancel to enhance the application's design.



DATA SELECTOR

A web screen is required that allows selecting a date range. Then, then by pressing a button it should show as a popup the list of all the movies that appear on the schedule, but only those movies that are in the selected date range.

What is the resulting navigation? Explain it...



NOTE: Since this is a query that will be frequently used in the Cinemas system, generate a new data selector object for later use.

In the same web screen, another popup list is to be generated to query the information of the movies that are going to be shown, as well as their time, room and date, within a certain date range.

What is the difference between this resulting navigation and the previous one? Explain it...



Additionally, it should allow viewing a popup list with the movies on the schedule, without repetitions and counting only the number of times they have appeared on the schedule in that date range.



What is the difference between this resulting navigation and the previous ones? Explain it...



PAGING CLAUSES

In the Work With screen associated with the Schedule, I am only interested in viewing 5 records at a time, and I want the output format to be an infinite scroll. Apply the requested change.

PAGING CLAUSES IN PROCEDURES

A screen is required where the user can call a list with the actors' information. In particular, the screen must allow selecting how many records to skip and how many to display later. Example: "I want to skip the first 3 records and be able to access the next 5 to work with that data."



BUSINESS COMPONENT

We will perform a series of operations on the database through Business Components.

UPDATING EMPLOYEES IN CHARGE

A specialized screen is required to select a room type (VIP, 3D, etc.) and select an employee. The employee will be in charge of all the rooms of that type.

Applicat		
Recents	Customer — wp Employee Room	
Room Type		Normal 🗸
Employee Id		Billie Robin 💙
Update Employee		

WORKING WITH MOVIES AND THEIR ACTORS

A screen with a special format that allows selecting a movie to work with its actors is requested. Two buttons will be offered:

- One that allows us to modify the actor's role to lead or to remove the lead role.
- Another one that allows deleting the actor from the selected movie.

Тір

Use the &Messages variable of GeneXus to program the system's messages in case of a failed or successful update.

What could you do so that the variable associated with the actor only shows the actors who are in the selected movie?



Applic	Application Name					
Recents	wp Movies Actors					
Data has been succe	essfully updated.					
Movie Id	Avengers E	End Game	~			
Actor Id Ro	obert Downey Jr 🗸 🗸	Is Starring	g 🔽			
Update Actor		Delete /	Actor			

UPDATING THE DATABASE WITH A PROCEDURE

In the same screen where you made the update of the employees in charge of the rooms according to their type, implement a button that performs the same update mentioned above but now using a procedure.

How could you delete the movies and their associated actors through a procedure?

Insert a new movie (any movie) with its corresponding actors.

Program a button on the screen you created earlier to work with movies and all their actors; this button should delete a selected movie and delete the associated actors. Delete the Movie you have just created.

What happens when you try to delete Movies that are related to other tables?

WEB PANELS

Next, we will start generating customized interactive screens that have been requested for the Cinemas system.

WORKING WITH THE PATTERN

In the screen that allows us to work with the movies we are asked to make the following changes:

- IDs must not be displayed.
- A calculated field that shows the number of lead actors in the movie.
- A button that shows the information about the movies previously created where the Category, the movie and the actors in it are displayed.

the second	Billion .									
	Moules	- Ine							4.040	-
	1.111		10000			10000				
		10	Development Development Designifieren an Development Development Her Lanaer In Fachture Careton Namerieren Des Anergens	an inc	time line	- the	r =.	-	-	
	and the former	-13	The first is inpact on this step of Particle Languages, with tables in this behavior exercisives participants and source with will need a strategies to particle at the matrix or particle at the particle behavior at the particle at the matrix or particle at the behavior at the particle at the behavior at the beh	Said Spins	Greatings	-	T .0	949476	16.275	
	-	- 4	The energy solution service and data is the the of human the ray in Marcella, a data was well and income solar optimized and constrained in the solar than and the particular solarity of the constraints of the solarity of the solarity of the lines.	Rates Jamesia	Losse Taxes		10 · .	waity		
	Liter Feller and Ref Printers of	- 69	The tim steep Earlief Specific and hear Parks, with Ruget David and Ruget Steep Steep Parks (Robinson Steep) and Steep Steep Steep Steep Steep Roberty Wards and Artistand and an an information of the protocol steep Steep Steep Steep Index y Wards (Steep Steep Steep Index y Wards) and Artistand St and Steep Steep Steep Steep Steep Index steep Steep Steep Steep Index steep Steep Steep Steep Index steep Stee		unactingger	-	2.50	aini.	-	
	THE CONTRACTOR		The fluctuation along it could be book. We cannot us a failer along make the products along the work to be obtained at the p	Server Tubburgs	Unicities	-	10	Seline .	14.275	

CREATING INTERACTIVE SCREENS

- A screen showing the Schedule information sorted by date of screening is requested. It should be possible to filter by:
 - Date, which must be greater than or equal to today's date. (The system must automatically suggest using today's date.)
 - Time.
 - Type of Room.
 - Name of the movie.

If the filters are empty, all the information of the schedule should be displayed.

For each record, a button is required to show the details of the selected movie when clicked on. In the detail screen, implement a button that allows returning to the previous web panel.

Movie Date	11/1	0/20 29	
Movie Time	• 11 AM	~	
Room Type	s Select Ro	om Type 🖌	
Movie Nam	ie		
Room Type	Movie Date Movie Tir	ne Movie Name	Movie Poster
Normal	12/17/20 11 AM	Inception	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
3D	12/18/20 11 AM	Hotel Transylvania	
Normal	12/18/20 11 AM	Harry Potter and the Priso	oner of Azkaban
VIP	12/23/20 11 AM	The family Man	
VIP	05/06/21 11 AM	Avengers End Game	

MULTIPLE GRIDS

A Web Panel is requested that allows viewing all Categories and for each one of them their associated movies.

For each movie, a button is requested that shows the details of the selected movie when clicked on. In the detail screen, implement a button that allows returning to the previous web panel.

Note: The web panel of the film detail can be reused.



Application Name	5, GeneXus
Recents wp Categories And	
Comedy	Honor Movie
Movie id Movie Name Movie Year Movie Poster Go To	Movie Id Movie Name Movie Year Movie Poster Go To
3 Fornest Gump 1994	
7 Unofficial Mission 2017	
Drama	Cartoon Movie
Movie Id Movie Name Movie Year Movie Poster Go To	Movie Id Movie Name Movie Year Movie Poster Go To
5 The family Man 2000	4 Holei Transylvania 2012
Action	Fantasy
Movie Id Movie Name Movie Year Movie Poster Go To	Movie Id Movie Name Movie Year Movie Poster Go To
1 Avengers End Game 2019	6 Hany Potter and the Prisoner of 2004 2004
2 Catch me if you can 2002 🚺 👌	
8 inception 2010	

How could you make sure that only categories that have associated movies are displayed?

Implement this change.

A screen is required to show the list of categories that have associated movies (without repetitions) and their number of movies. In addition, it should allow selecting a category and then display the associated movies on the same screen.

Application Name				by GeneXus
Recents wp Categories Sele				
Category Name	Qty Movies	Movie Name	Movie Poster	Movie Year
Comedy	2	Avengers End Game	Ba	2019
Drama	1			
Cartoon	34	Catch me if you can	4 3	2002
Action	3		- Contraction of the local diversion of the l	
Fantasy	1	Inception		2010

What should be the base table of the Grid that displays the Category information?

Note: It is recommended that the WorkWith class be applied to the Grid to improve its appearance.

GRID	1	GRID			Collection		
Category Id	Category Name	Movie Name	Movie Poster	Movie Yea	Base Trn		
Categoryld	CategoryName	MovieName		MovieYea	Order		
					Conditions		
					Unique		
					Save State	False	
					Data Selector	(none)	
4	0				 Appearance 		
					Class	WorkWith	~
					Custom Rende		

GRID WITHOUT BASE TABLE

A special screen is required that shows the movies to be presented for each date. The format is as follows:

Application Name	neXus
Recentswp Special Billboard	
Room Movie Date Movie Name	
09/26/20 / Avengers End Game / Avengers End Game / Harry Potter and the Prisoner of Azkaban / Unofficial Mission / Unofficial Mission	
09/28/20 / Catch me if you can	
09/30/20 / Forrest Gump / Catch me if you can / The family Man	
12/16/20 / Catch me if you can	
12/17/20 / Inception	
12/18/20 / Harry Potter and the Prisoner of Azkaban / Hotel Transylvania	
12/22/20 / Unofficial Mission	
12/23/20 / The family Man	
12/25/20 / Harry Potter and the Prisoner of Azkaban	
12/31/20 / Avengers End Game	
05/06/21 / Averigers End Game	

LOADING COLLECTIONS

A ranking of Customers is required according to the seats of each ticket they have purchased. To solve the above, use a structure.



Structure Documentation			
Name	Туре	Description	Is Collection
🖶 🔝 sdtRankingCustomer		sdt Ranking Customer	
B SdtRankingCustomerItem			
 CustomerName 	Attribute:CustomerName	Customer Name	
 CustomerTickets 	Numeric(4.0)	Customer Tickets	

In addition to the above, when selecting a customer, the screen must show the customer's information in PDF format with the corresponding number of tickets.

Tip

Use the AllowSellection property of the Grid and the OnLineActivate event.

SAVING CONTEXT INFORMATION

Open the web panel containing the entire information of the Schedule. It is required that when returning to this screen after viewing the movie's details, the filter values are saved.

SPECIAL SCREEN FOR TICKET SALES

Make a copy of the previous screen and modify the web panel classes so that it looks similar to the following:

Desi	\$200M/20 (G)				Date		12/08/20	
Time	11 AW				Tme	11.4	м ~	
Norm Type	Select Room Type 👻				Room Type			
Move Barre					100000	568	ct Hoom Type 🗢	
					Movie Name			
Room Type	Movie Date	Movie Smw	Micela Marter	Movie Poster				
Normal	12-1729	ELAW-	Tabagilian	the state		Movie Date	Movie Time	Movie Name
	13/19/20	AT 2004	Hotel Transplation	1.Dil		12:17/20	11 AM	Prosphale
			MINE COMPANY			12/10/20	11 AM	Hotel Transylvania
Nota	12/10/20	TTAM.	Harty Police and the Prosenic strategies	1		12/16/20	11 AM	Harry Poter and the Pincree' of Azkaban
VP.	(32)20	tram.	The Senity Marc	22		12/23/20	11 AM	The lamity blan
100	15/16/21	TT AM	Avergers End Game	the		(598-21	tt AM	Avergers End Genve

Тір

Use the WorkWith class of the Grid and the WWColumn and WWOptionalColumn classes.

When selecting a line of the Schedule, a popup window should be displayed with the details of the selected movie. The Employee may or may not select a customer and the number of seats to be

purchased; by clicking on the Buy button, the purchase will be made. Note: sometimes it will not be possible to make the purchase due to some control that we have programmed, so you should see the system messages on the screen:

Applic	cation Name							- Genelius
- Belevin -	op Dittoord Saw							
Date	12/08/20							
Time	11 AM							
Roces Pype	Select Room Ty	pe	Wp Buy Beats			X		
Movie Nami			Net mongh made	Cuto Tana	Marcin Marca	Auto Luciotta		
				15/06/21 TLAW	Avergers End Came	0.		
Room Type							Movie Poster	
Normal			Customer M Troot Seats Quantity	No California				
30								
Normal			Bay				1	
WP				12/23/20 11 AM	The family Mar	i.	11	
*				(monane) (1944)	(second second	-	靈	

Applicat	ion Name						ti	, GeneXus
Recents wp	Billboard Sale							
Date	12/08/20	3						
Тітне	5 PM	wp Buy Seats				X		
Room Type	Select Room Typ	Calls has been succ	essfully added.					
			Room	Date Time	Movie Name	Seats Available		
Movie Name			3	05/07/215 PM	Holel Transylvania	149		
Room Type		Customer 1d		Lee Wu 🖌 🖌			Movie Poster	
30		Ticket Seats Quantity	6	1 -			1	
Rental				₩ 4 5 0, •			-	
a.		Buy						



MULTI-CHANNEL SCREENS: PANELS

To complete the following exercise, you will need to check that you meet the <u>necessary requirements to generate in</u> <u>Angular</u>.

A panel generated with Angular containing the information of the schedule is required.

To solve the above, press Ctrl+N and select the Panel object. In the panel, drag a Grid and select the movie's date, time, room, name and poster.

Set the Autogrow property of the Grid to True.

After saving the panel object, to start running on Angular, go to *FrontEnd* in the *KBExplorer*. Change the *Generate Angular* property to *True*; since we are not going to develop for mobile applications at the moment, change the *Generate Android* and *Generate Apple* properties to *False*.

2 mm	2 🙀 Filter		×	
~	Generator: Fronten	d (Front end)	^	
	Name	Frontend		
	Generate Android	False		
	Generate App <mark>l</mark> e	False 🗸		
	Main Platform	Angular		
	Dynamic Services UR	False		
	Services URL	http://localhost/CinemaTrial.N		
	SSL Pinning Pin Set			
	Smart Devices Cache	On		
	Generate Angular	True		
	Angular Specific			
	Setup Command	npm install pnpm -g & pnpm		
	Run command	nom start	×	

In the panel properties, change the Main Program property to True, right-click on the object name and click on Run to run the application.



			Properties	
	<u>C</u> lose	T 💦	9 😽 Filter	
	Close All But This		· Danah MuMauian	
 Applicat 	Full Screen			
] Open		Name	MyMovies
	Open <u>P</u> art	÷Ц	Description	My Movies
×	Delete		Description	
Movie D	Save As		Module/Folder	FrontEndAngular
R	References		Qualified Name	MyMovies
Movie N	<u>H</u> istory		Object Visibility	Public
	Properties			Tublic
	Locate in KB Explorer		Main program	True
GRID	Build		Master Panel	(none)
Roomle	Rebuild	vie	Caption	My Movies
	Run		cuption	My Movies
	Run Without Building		✓ Miscellaneous	
	Run With This Only		Generate Object	True
	Build With This Only		V Network	
	Set As Startup Object		* Network	
<	View Last Navigation	>	Connectivity Support	Online

Check that the application looks like this.

3	7/5/2021	5 PM	Hotel Transylvania	
4	6/5/2021	11 AM	Avengers End Game	
6	30/4/2021	8 PM	Inception	13 p. 15

Now add a variable that calculates the number of sales issued by Schedule. *Note: we have an attribute that calculates the number of seats sold; we do not want to show that information, but the number of tickets or sales.*

GRID	9			
Roomid	ScheduleMovieDate	ScheduleMovieTime 👻	MovieName	&TicketQty

Program what is needed in the events section and test how the application works.

We want to see the information sorted by date and to program filters by the name of the movie; also, we want to see the screenings starting from a certain date.

Movie Date		04/05/2021			
Movie Name		av			
6/5/2021	11 AM	4	Avengers End Game	3	

TESTING THE APPLICATION ON SMART DEVICES

Change the Generate Android property to True to start testing the application in Smart Devices and check that the Main Platform property is changed to Android.

	🛃 🌾 Filter			×
Y	Generator: Fronte	nd (Front end)		^
	Name	Frontend		
	Generate Android	True	~	
	Generate Huawei	False		
	Generate Apple	False		
	Main Platform	Android		

Now right-click on the panel's name and run the application. A screen should be displayed in Android that will be the same as the one previously generated for the web.



PROGRESSIVE WEB APPLICATIONS [SUGGESTED]

We will slightly change the application's appearance to make the PWA look better. Open the KB Explorer and search in the filter *"RWD Master Page."* This is the Master Page associated with all the GeneXus objects in our KB.

Note that it has three sections:

- A Header containing the name of the application and logo.
- A web component object that is responsible for providing the menu of recent links.
- A content placeholder where the objects of our application are displayed.

In the *Header*, select the *ApplicationHeader* control and change the caption property to the application's name: My Cinema.



eb Kules Events Condi Vana Help Docu	21 🜾 Filter		×
No action group selected>	🖂 textblock: Appli	cationHeader	^
Header A ApplicationHeader	Control Name	ApplicationHeader	
My Cinema	Caption	My Cinema	
• CEREXUS	On Click Event		
0	Return On Click	False	
Component>	V Appearance		
	Class	TextBlockHeader	
ContentBlaceUoldora	Format	Text	
contentriacenoider>	Tooltip Text		

Select the *Image1* control and in the Image property select an image as company logo. You can use the images provided for the practice exercises. Check that the *PoweredBy* class is applied.

Web., Rules Events Condi Varia Halo Docu	General Class		
<no action="" group="" selected=""></no>	2 Filter		×
MainTable Header Image1	Control Name	Image1	
Cinema	Low Resolution Ima	(none)	
	Return On Click On Click Event	False	
<component></component>	~ Appearance		
	Class	PoweredBy	
<contentplaceholder></contentplaceholder>	Height		
	Width		
	Alternate Text		~
	O Properties Toolb	ox 🗟 Tests Expl. 🗄 Tests F	Res

Make a copy of the web panel where all the schedule information is displayed:

Movie Date		11/10/2	0 29			
Movie Time		11 AM	~			
Room Type		Select Room	Туре 🗸			
Movie Name						
Room Type M	ovie Date	Movie Time	Movie Name		Movie Poster	
Normal	12/17/20	11 AM	Inception			>
3D	12/18/20	11 AM	Hotel Transylvania			>
Normal	12/18/20	11 AM	Harry Potter and th	e Prisoner of Azkaban	1	>
VIP	12/23/20	11 AM	The family Man		1	>
VIP	05/06/21	11 AM	Avengers End Gar	ie	-	>

Inside the new web panel, select the Grid and in its class property change it to WorkWith.

Also, hide the Movie ID and delete the variable that allows us to see the movie's details and its associated method.

Select the attributes RoomId, ScheduleMovieDate, ScheduleMovieTime and MovieName; in the class property, enter *WWColumn*. For each column in the Title property, change their names to shorter ones.

Select the attributes RoomType, Movield, and Movie Poster; in the class property, enter *WWColumn WWOptionalColumn*. Also, enter shorter names for each column.

Within the properties of the web panel where the nested Grid is programmed, change *Main Program* to *True*. Note that a new group of properties called *Main object properties* has been activated. In this block, change the *Web Application* property to *Progressive*.

2 Filter		×
Show Master Page w	False	^
Main program	True	
On session timeout	Ignore	
Focus control	Use Environment property val	
Cache expiration laps		
Automatic refresh	Yes	
Auto compress http	Use Environment property val	
Qualified Name	wpBillboardPWA	
Object Visibility	Public	
 Main object prop 	erties	
Web Application	Progressive	
Location		
Generator	Default (C# Web)	
Web Application		
Web Application N		

By changing the default property to Progressive, a new group of properties called Web Application has been activated and we will configure them in this way:

🌾 Filter		×
Generator	Default (C# Web)	^
Web Application		
Web Application Name	My Cinema	
Web Application Short Name	мс	
Web Application Description	Cinema Progressive Web App description	
Primary Text Direction	Auto	
Display	Fullscreen	
Background Color	#D4D8D0	
Theme Color	#DAA520	
Prefer Related Applications	False	
Web Application Icon	movies	
Android Alternative App		
Android Alternative App Identifier		
iOS Alternative App		
Offline Object	WWBillboard	

Right-click on the web panel and select the option Run With This Only.





In the browser, note the option to install the application, click on it and go to the shortcut that has been created on the desktop.



Open the application with a double click. Note that the colors, icon, and screen resize correspond to the settings we have made.

ng Official Page				a a a	- D *	and Billing of Pills		۹ ۽	1 - 0 -
My Cinema				cine	ma	My Cinem	a	cin	ema
Managers and Divisions Press.						farmers and the	NAK PON		
Waters following California	199708					That Meyer Delle			
Rome Manie Sciendarie	11.847					House Mines Schedum	n446		
Asset Task	100					Have Type	10		
More Name						Miner Faire			
Appen Type		Data	Schedule -	them .	Paster	Rear		Data Britanikular	low
1.105		102009	11,400	Trachenty Man	272		197	NZE FLAM	The Sendy Merr
							inve inve	601 TLAM	Average's Dirol Gene
4.98		000621	11.00	Awryon Dro Gene					

WEB SERVICES [SUGGESTED]

We are requested to publish a web service that allows querying the information of a certain movie by its name.

To implement the above, we are going to create an SDT collection based on the Movie transaction. You can drag the transaction to the structure or create the SDT manually.

Next, drag the structure to a data provider and configure the following:



The condition previously programmed will allow us to retrieve the list of all movies even if the parameter is empty. We will expose the service as Rest.

Place a rule that receives the attribute we will filter by: parm(in:&MovieName);

Now right-click on the DP name and select the option "Build With This Only" to expose the service. To confirm that everything is correct, place the following link:

http://server/baseURL/rest/DataProviderName

The following should be displayed:



('Revision': 'Average': 'Average': 'Average': 'Nubleaders': 'Nubleaders': 'Average': 'Nubleaders': 'Average': 'Nubleaders': 'Average': 'Nubleaders': 'N

Now we will build a web panel that will allow us to consume the Rest service with the HttpClient data type. It can be within the same KB or in a different one. The web panel should have the following structure:

Variables:

Variable	Data type
HttpClient	HttpClient
MovieName	Character(50)
SdtMovies	Based on the SDT previously created
StringParameter	Character(200)

Web Layout

MainTable 📄 ErrorViewe	r1			,
) - ErrorViewer ErrorViewert >			1	0
CLITOT VIEWEL, LITOT VIEWELT>				0
Movie Name & MovieName				
Get Movie Info				
Get Movie Info				
Get Movie Info GRID Movie Name	Movie Year	Movie Poster	Movie Description	Movie Country Name

<u>Events</u>

'Get Movie Info'	~
1 EVe	ent 'Get Movie Info'
2	<pre>&httpclient.Host= "localhost"</pre>
3	<pre>&httpclient.Port = 80</pre>
4	<pre>&httpclient.BaseUrl = "/KBNAME.NetEnvironment/rest/"</pre>
5	<pre>&httpclient.secure = 0</pre>
6	<pre>&StringParameter = 'DPNAME?' + 'MovieName=' + &MovieName</pre>
7	<pre>&httpclient.Execute('GET', &StringParameter)</pre>
8	
9 🕫	if <pre>&httpclient.StatusCode = 200</pre>
10	<pre>msg("Everything Ok!")</pre>
11	<pre>&sdtMovies.FromJson(&httpClient.ToString())</pre>
12	else
13	<pre>msg("Error: " + &httpclient.StatusCode.ToString())</pre>
14 -	endif
15 - End	levent
16	

Run the application and check that the service can be consumed. Type the name of a movie or leave the field empty; in both cases, you should be able to consume the service.

NOTE: Enable the read-only property to True for each field of the SDT that is being printed on the screen.

My Cinema		cinema			
Recente Billiourtu - Der	Morran				
European Dat Nove Trans					
Gel Nove 110					
Movie Name	Movie Year Movie Po	star Movie Description	Movie Country Name	Category Name	Film Director Name
Avergers Entil Garte	2010	Avergent Cridgene is an American superfiero firs based	Unded Status	Action	Joe Ruleon
Catch me if yos can	2002	The film is based on the illo of Frank Abagnale, who, befo	United States	Actor	Steven Spilberg
Finted Gurge	1994 🔔	The stary depicts serveral decades in the life of Parent Os	United States	Currently	Robert Zerrenzkia
Hotel Transporte	2012	The first tells the story of Court Direction free money of a hi	Unded States	Cartiser	Germity Tartakovsky
The family Man	2000	The flast centers on a man who experiences what his life r	United States	Drama	Birth Ratner
Hany Poller and Its Process of Actual	2004	The tire stars Daniel Rocciffe as Harry Potter, with Right	United Kingdom	Fartasy	Alfanyo Cuaran
Unofficial Mestion	2017	Unofficial Mission is a documentary converty, directed by 2	Unspote	Corredy	Denny Brectmer
inception	2010	The film stars Leonardo DiCapito as a professional thief u	Undext States	Action	Christopher Notan



MONTEVIDEO - URUGUAY CIUDAD DE MÉXICO - MÉXICO MIAMI - USA SÃO PAULO - BRASIL TOKYO - JAPAN

Av. Italia 6201- Edif. Los Pinos, P1 Hegel N* 221, Piso 2, Polanco V Secc. 7300 N Kendall Drive, Suite 470 Rua Samuel Morse 120 Conj. 141 2-27-3, Nishi-Gotanda Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo, 141-0031